Thank You

It brings me great pleasure to welcome you to ‘The Caring for Kenwood Story’, a celebratory booklet designed to highlight the breadth of work undertaken during the Caring for Kenwood project, and to thank our donors, who together contributed 85% of total project costs, and without whom the project would not have been possible.

As one of the jewels in The National Heritage Collection, we are delighted that Kenwood is restored to its original splendour: the leaking roof has been repaired, the magnificent Robert Adam interiors re-decorated, and the Iveagh Bequest of masterpieces - including works by Vermeer, Rembrandt and Gainsborough - have been re-hung. The once disused Dairy has also been restored, complete with a new volunteer hub, from where our new activities and education programme will be administered.

The closure of the house also provided us with a unique opportunity to revitalise the wider estate; increased volunteering and training opportunities, a larger events calendar and expanded education programme are all ways in which we have made Kenwood a key part of the wider community.

Visitors will now enjoy new displays that tell the story of the house through family trails and architectural designs. The Orangery has also been equipped with families in mind.

Thank you for your support; this truly transformative project would not have been possible without you.

Simon Thurley
Chief Executive
KENWOOD EXTERIOR
The Kenwood House we enjoy today is the vision of world-famous 18th-century Scottish architect, Robert Adam (1728-92), who by 1779 had transformed this once plain brick villa (originally built by King James I’s printer John Bull in 1616) into a neoclassical triumph. Bought from the Scottish aristocrat John Stuart, 3rd Earl of Bute in 1754 for £4,000, the Lord Chief Justice, William Murray, Lord Mansfield commissioned Adam and his brother James to remodel the house. What Adam went on to create was his vision of a ‘magnificent, beautiful and picturesque’ building, befitting the status of its celebrity inhabitant. His adaptation of the existing building led to the addition of an impressive colonnaded portico on the north front, and the celebrated south front and terrace. He modernised the existing interiors, notably the Entrance Hall and Great Stairs, and built a new ‘Great Room’ or library for entertaining. The addition of the Library and Ante Chamber to the south elevation, with the same volume as the Orangery, was an ingenious way of providing a symmetrical façade.

Kenwood’s library in particular, with its neoclassical form, decorative frieze and ceiling paintings is one of Adam’s greatest interiors. It was hailed at the time as “superior to any thing of the kind in England”. Redecorated many times, Adam’s original scheme was obscured until 2011, when detailed historic paint analysis revealed the redecoration to be inaccurate. Using evidence from more than 400 tiny samples of historic paint, a newly discovered inventory and some of Adam’s original drawings, English Heritage has re-created the complex palette of colours from the original decoration scheme.

The result features a subtle palette of pale blues, greens and pinks in a framework of delicate white plaster work that serves to unite the 19 ceiling paintings from 1769 by the Venetian artist Antonio Zucchi. The extensive gilding - historic but not original Adam - has been painted over but carefully protected beneath removable layers, and the modern carpet removed to reveal the original floor.

Three other Robert Adam designed spaces in Kenwood have also been restored to their original colours - the Entrance Hall, the Great Stairs, and the Ante Chamber - or entrance to the Library - which is now restored to its original delicate lead white and pale green, and its once-marbled columns are white again as Adam intended. Items of furniture designed by Adam and integral to the overall scheme have been tracked down, brought back, and now stand again in their original places, including an original library window seat and two long stools in the Ante Chamber.
ENTRANCE HALL
Edward Cecil Guinness, 1st Earl of Iveagh (1847-1927), brewer and the second richest man in England bought Kenwood and the 74 acres immediately surrounding it from previous owner Lord Mansfield in 1925.

Upon his death just two years later, the Iveagh Bequest Act of 1929 stipulated that Kenwood should be open, free of charge to the public. This included the display of 63 works from Lord Iveagh’s outstanding collection of Old Master and British paintings by such highly regarded artists as Rembrandt, Vermeer, Hals, Van Dyck, Gainsborough, Reynolds and Turner.

The paintings can be divided into distinct groups. The first and largest group comprises British portraits of the second half of the 18th-century, including Thomas Gainsborough’s *Mary, Countess Howe* (ca. 1764). The second group consists of major paintings of international standing, predominantly drawn from the 17th-century Dutch and Flemish schools.

Some works including Rembrandt’s *Portrait of the Artist* (ca. 1665) and Johannes Vermeer’s *The Guitar Player* (ca. 1672) are among the finest paintings by their respective artists. Other collections which have been given or moved to Kenwood include a small group of French paintings of the Rococo period, the Hull Grundy collection of 18th and 19th-century jewellery; Lady Maufe’s collection of shoe buckles (the single most impressive collection of its type); and part of the Draper collection of British portrait miniatures.

The Suffolk Collection of Tudor and Stuart era portraits has been exhibited on the first floor of Kenwood House since 2002. These pictures are of national and in some cases international significance, and remain a very popular attraction within the house. Through the Caring for Kenwood project, English Heritage has refurbished three south front rooms, re-hanging many of the Earl of Iveagh’s paintings and evoking - as the Earl wished - “a fine example of the artistic home of an 18th-century gentleman.”
BREAKFAST ROOM
LORD MANSFIELD’S STUDY
LADY MANSFIELD’S DRESSING ROOM
THE DAIRY

It was fashionable for 18th-century ladies to run dairies; they were designed as elegant places their friends could visit, and an ‘eye-catcher’ in the landscape. The 2nd Earl and Countess of Mansfield built a dairy at Kenwood between 1794 and 1796. Designed by George Saunders in the Swiss chalet style, it consists of three separate buildings around a central courtyard. The Earl’s wife Louisa supervised a dairymaid who lived in the cottage and produced the fresh butter, cream, puddings and ice-cream enjoyed by the family and their guests.

The Dairy remained relatively unaltered until 1929 when it was converted to residential use by London County Council, who acquired the estate after the First World War. Further residential improvements were carried out in 1955 and the buildings were tenanted until the mid 1990s when the Dairy fell out of use.

As part of the Caring for Kenwood project, the Dairy is now restored and is a base for the volunteers at Kenwood, as well as local community group the Heath Hands. The Dairy Room, with its original marble trays, and the Tearoom are now conserved and will be opened regularly to the public as well as for visits by local school children and education groups.

Top Image: Julius Caesar Ibbetson, Three Long-Horned Cattle at Kenwood (1797)
Bottom Image: Cows return to the Dairy at the Kenwood Summer Fête, 2013
KENWOOD DAIRY EXTERIOR
KENWOOD DAIRY INTERIOR
KENWOOD DAIRY TEAROOM
The Heritage Lottery Fund
A lasting difference for heritage and people

The Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) congratulates English Heritage on a centenary’s worth of achievement protecting some of the nation’s most precious historic buildings, monuments and landscapes.

We are proud to be the main funder of restoration work at Kenwood and applaud everyone involved with the project, including the opening up of the Dairy. Over the last 19 years we have invested £5.6bn in 36,000 projects across the UK, transforming our nation’s heritage for everyone to enjoy.

www.hlf.org.uk

The Wolfson Foundation
Supporting excellence in the arts

The Wolfson Foundation is very pleased to have been a supporter of the restoration of Kenwood House: a triumphant achievement by English Heritage and a fitting project to mark the centenary celebrations of English Heritage and its predecessors.

Since 1955 the Wolfson Foundation has supported excellence across the UK in the fields of science and medicine, health and disability, education and the arts and humanities. The restoration work at Kenwood (including the Wolfson-funded work to the Dairy which had been closed to the public for many years) is a superb example of the importance of investing in the country’s cultural heritage and making it accessible for all.

www.wolfson.org.uk

THANK YOU

English Heritage wishes to thank the many donors who have supported the Caring for Kenwood project and made it possible.

In 1927 Lord Iveagh donated Kenwood House, its collections and the wider estate, to the nation. It is, therefore, wholly fitting that the generosity of those who value the estate most should once again ensure Kenwood’s future.

We also thank those donors, not listed here, who choose to remain anonymous. Together their contributions total a significant sum.

Today, everyone who enjoys Kenwood free of charge is indebted to Lord Iveagh for his great act of philanthropy. Finally we wish to acknowledge Edward Cecil Guinness, 1st Earl of Iveagh.

Heritage Lottery Fund
The Wolfson Foundation
The Friends of the Iveagh Bequest, Kenwood
Kenwood Dairy Restoration Trust

Rose, Jack & Jean Baron
Ernest Cook Trust
J Paul Getty Jr Charitable Trust
The George John & Sheilah Livanos Charitable Trust
The John S Cohen Foundation
The Kirby Laing Foundation
Parker & Farr Furniture
Tony Banks Memorial Trust

The Iveagh Circle
Ecclesiastical Insurance
Carys & Eric Gadsden
Andrew & Alexandra Lavery
Midge & Simon Palley
Helen Payne
The Dr Mortimer & Theresa Sackler Foundation
Paul & Juliette Sonabend
Capital BC Partners
Jacqueline & Jonathan Gestetner
The Kennedy Leigh Charitable Trust
Andrew Reicher

www.iveaghcircle.com
THANK YOU

Mark Abbott
D Aderyn
Alan Afif
Andre Bernheim Charitable Trust
David & Nancy Aukin
Lucy Armitage
Errol Baker
Jerome Bernatas
A Biggs
S H Billinge
Peter Blackwell
C M Blake
Hayley Blitz
L Keith Bolderson
Peter Bourdillon
Dr Roger Bowerler
Lesley Bowler
Dennis Bradley
Keith Brame
Gary & Eleanor Brass
Rosemary Bresson
Ann Brudenell
G R Bull
Thomas Bums
Christopher Butcher
Anthony Cadwallader
Peter Capel
N L Challen
Colin & Annabel Chamberlain
S M Chillingworth
Neil & Emma Cosgrove
William Daniell
Bryan Deal
E D Dives
Lady Dollery
John Drake
J I Dunnett
Laurence Elks
Valerie Elliott & Tony Harrop-Griffiths
Jon & Gill Epstein
S A Feakin
I Feltham
A S Filmer
Alison Finch
Caroline Foreman
Dr Michael Fox
Dr Patricia Fraser
Frankie de Frietas
B Goldstein
Virginia Greenwood
David Griffiths
Trevor Grove
P M Gruber
Andrew Gullan
Barbara Hale
Jeanette Hall
H John Hann
E M Hart
Mark Hennessy
R J & J Hills
D Hindle
Edith Howard
Erica Hudson
Frances Hunter
Les Jarman
S P Johnson
David Jones
M Keller
Dr Paul & Dr Birte Kelly
Michael Kendall
D Knights
Brian Lacey
Linda Lakhdir
Sue Larkin
John & Gillian Lawson
David & Vicki Lee
Lord & Lady Levene
Clive Lewis
Sheila Lilly
Ronald Loft
Anne Logue
Edward Long
Dr A R Lord
A S MacFaul
June Mack
Ann Mackenzie
Hugh Martin
Margaret McKinlay
Janet Owen
Richard Owen
John & Lois Owen-Ward
Dr Henry Pachmayr
Dr Chris Page
Reverend Graham Palmer
D A Pears
Eunice M Phillips
Brian Phillips
Pamela L Pickering
Lance Pierson
Martin Plaut
Anthony Price
T V Pritchard
Elizabeth Prophet
Anne Rands
G A & R M Rees
The Sir John Ritblat Family Foundation
Barbara Roberts
THE FRIENDS OF THE IVY AGH BEQUEST, KENWOOD

Since their foundation in 1979 the Friends of Kenwood have provided invaluable support to the estate across a wide range of projects. The Caring for Kenwood project has been no exception. The Friends’ funding of works in the Entrance Hall and restoration of the Jervas frame, which hangs in the same space, has led to a transformed welcome for visitors to the house.

English Heritage gratefully acknowledges the following donors to the Friends of Kenwood:

- Elizabeth Album
- Mr James & Lady Emma Barnard
- L K Barnes
- Mr & Mrs Richard Bristow
- M Susan E Brown
- Mr A B Burrell
- Dr Vivienne Cohen
- Mr & Mrs Geoffrey Collins
- Angela Cox
- Gillian de Ayala
- Walter Elkan
- Winifred Freed
- Nicholas & Judith Goodison
- Gavin Graham
- Stéfanie Green
- Mr Nigel Grey-Turner
- June Hirst
- Dr Barry Hoffbrand
- Frank & Gill Hopkins
- Mrs Martin Isepp
- Margaret Kennedy
- Mr Peter Linden
- Christine Mathez-Davey
- Miss Marianne McDonald
- Alan Merkel
- Christine Morgan
- Jenny & Michael Nathan
- Richard Ormond
- Helen Payne
- Peter Ratzer
- Hana Rayner
- Dr Christine Riley
- Miss Annabel Ripin
- Mr & Mrs Nevile Robinson
- John & Susan Rosen
- Shifra & Denis Ross
- Mr Kenneth Rubens OBE & Mrs Angela Rubens
- Jill & Michael Salmon
- Allan Siddick
- David & Paula Swift
- Andrea & Michael Taylor
- Pat Taylor
- Jocelyne Tobin
- The Wanduragala Family
- Judy & Donald Williams
- Alanna Wilson
- 15 donors who wish to remain anonymous
The Kenwood Dairy Restoration Trust has long valued the importance of the Dairy as part of the Kenwood estate and has worked with English Heritage to bring it back into public use. The Trust’s fundraising efforts as part of the Caring for Kenwood project has played a vital part in the realisation of this long held ambition.

English Heritage gratefully acknowledges the following donors to the Kenwood Dairy Restoration Trust:

- Midge & Simon Palley
- Belvedere Trust
- The Vandervell Foundation
- Guy & Annabel Wilson
- The Heath & Hampstead Society
- Mr & Mrs Lavery
- Sir Victor & Lady Blank
- Sir Julian & Lady Flaux
- Martin & Alicia Herbert
- The Rothenberg family
- Sally Walton
- Patricia Michelson of La Fromagerie Ltd
- Ralph & Elizabeth Aldwinckle
- Mr & Mrs Butcher
- Christine M Cohen OBE
- Mr & Mrs Dorfman
- Tony & Margaret Ghilchik
- Martin & Angela Humphery
- Charles & Gill Perrin
- Peter & Linda Robson
- Irvine & Elizabeth Sellar
- Nick & Julia Stevenson
- Antony & Angela Wedgwood
- Mrs D Wolton
- Ann & Jeremy Edge
- Antony & Fiona Edwards-Stuart
- Tony & Val Harrop-Griffiths
- Dr E Jackson
- J & G Lawson
- David & Sue Lewis
- Nicky & Charles Manby
- Ceridwen & Stephen Panke
- Jackie & John Rothenberg
- Alan Swerdlow
- Lesley Adams
- Mr & Mrs I Bass
- Cheryl & Stuart Beare
- Celia & Andrew Bell
- Mr P Capel
- Colin & Annabel Chamberlain
- Mr & Mrs J Cowley
- Professor & Mrs. William Critchley
- Dorcas & Norman Cumming
- S & J Fogal Charitable Trust
- John & Patricia Glasswell
- Mr & Mrs J Goldhill
- Virginia Greenwood
- Mr & Mrs M Haines
- Kate & Geoff Howles
- Neil & Beverly Ivey
- Bobby de Joia
- Bernard & Pamela Jolles
- Mr & Mrs R Lewis
- Mrs Joy Manners
- Mr & Mrs R Morgan
- Mr & Mrs R J Owen-Ward
- David & Jill Pittaway
- Dr R J Preece
- Anne Rands
- Ms H Sergent
- Stephen & Lucie Silber
- Derek & Sheila Spivack
- Elizabeth & Anthony Stern
- Sir John & Lady Stuttard